#### **AGENDA**



# MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING August 24, 2022 7:00 PM Molalla Civic Center 315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038

#### Mayor Scott Keyser

Council President Jody Newland Councilor Elizabeth Klein Councilor Terry Shankle Councilor Leota Childress Councilor Crystal Robles Councilor Eric Vermillion

**REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING begins at 7:00pm:** Open to the Public and open to Public Comment or Testimony. Please fill out a comment card and submit it to the City Recorder, prior to the beginning of the meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION begins immediately following Regular Session: Not open to Public, according to ORS 192.660(2): d and e

In accordance with House Bill 2560, the City of Molalla adheres to the following practices:

Live-streaming of the Molalla City Council Meetings are available on Facebook at "Molalla City Council Meetings —

LIVE" and "Molalla City Council Meetings" on YouTube.

Citizens can submit Public Comment in the following ways: attend the meeting, email the City Recorder @ <a href="mailto:recorder@cityofmolalla.com">recorder@cityofmolalla.com</a> by 4:00pm on the day of the meeting, or drop it off at City Hall, 117 N. Molalla Avenue.

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE

2. ROLL CALL

3. C	:ON	ISENT	AGENDA	١
------	-----	-------	--------	---

A.	Meeting Minutes – August 10, 2022	Pg.	3
В.	2022 Budgeted Backhoe Purchase	Pg.	5

#### 4. PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, CEREMONIES

#### 5. PUBLIC COMMENT & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

(Citizens are allowed up to 3 minutes to present information relevant to the City but not listed as an item on the agenda. Prior to speaking, citizens shall complete a comment form and deliver it to the City Recorder. The City Council does not generally engage in dialog with those making comments but may refer the issue to the City Manager. Complaints shall first be addressed at the department level prior to addressing the City Council.)

#### 6. PUBLIC HEARINGS

#### 7. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

#### 8. GENERAL BUSINESS

A.	Mercury TMDL Report (Peters)	Pg.	6
B.	Distinguished Budget Presentation Award	Pg.	46

#### 9. STAFF COMMUNICATION

#### 10. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

#### **11. EXECUTIVE SESSION**

Held pursuant to Oregon Public Record Law, ORS 192.660(2):

- (d) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations.
- (e) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions.

#### 12. RECONVENE REGULAR SESSION

#### 13. ADJOURN



#### Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting

#### Molalla Civic Center 315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 August 10, 2022

#### **CALL TO ORDER**

The Molalla City Council Meeting of August 10, 2022 was called to order by Mayor Scott Keyser at 7:00pm.

#### **COUNCIL ATTENDANCE**

Present: Mayor Scott Keyser, Council President Jody Newland, Councilor Elizabeth Klein, Councilor Leota Childress, Councilor Terry Shankle, Councilor Crystal Robles, and Councilor Eric Vermillion.

#### STAFF IN ATTENDANCE

Mac Corthell, Community Development Director; Andy Peters, Public Works Division Manager, Christie Teets, City Recorder.

#### **CONSENT AGENDA**

A.	City Council Meeting Minutes – July 13, 2022	Pg.	. 3
	City Council Meeting Minutes – July 27, 2022	_	
	Work Session Meeting Minutes – July 27, 2022		
D.	Library Board Meeting Minutes – February 17, 2022	Pg.	30

A motion was made by Councilor Childress to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Councilor Robles. Vote passed 7-0, with all Councilors voting Aye.

#### **EXECUTIVE SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT**

Mayor Keyser announced the following: "Prior to Regular Session this evening, an Executive Session was held. The session was held pursuant to Oregon Public Record Law, ORS 192.660(2):

(e) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions.

No decisions were made at this meeting."

Council President Newland made a motion to authorize city staff to enter into real property negotiations for a two-million-gallon water tank, seconded by Councilor Vermillion. Vote passed 7-0, with all Councilors voting Aye.

#### PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, CEREMONIES

None.

#### **PUBLIC COMMENT**

None.

#### **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

None.

#### **ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS**

A. Ordinance No. 2022-03: Declaring a Ban on Psilocybin Service Centers and the Manufacture of Psilocybin Products (2<sup>nd</sup> Reading)

Community Development Director Corthell presented the staff report, explaining to council members the need for the second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 2022-03.

City Recorder Teets shared data that Council had requested from the July 27, 2022, meeting. During the Work Session, the City Attorney mentioned 2020 voting results of Measure 109 in Molalla. Votes to pass the Measure totaled 1,186, votes against the Measure totaled 2,002.

Councilor Vermillion made a motion to hold the second reading of Ordinance 2022-03 by title only and approve it for adoption. Seconded by Council President Newland. Vote passed 6-1. Voting Aye: Mayor Keyser, Councilor Vermillion, Councilor Shankle, Council President Newland, Councilor Robles, and Councilor Klein. Voting Nay: Councilor Childress.

B. <u>Resolution No. 2022-15</u>: Referring to the Voters of Molalla A Measure of Proposing the Prohibition of Psilocybin-Related Business from Operating Within the City

A motion was made by Council President Newland to adopt Resolution No. 2022-15 by title only, seconded by Councilor Shankle. Vote passed 6-1. Voting Aye: Mayor Keyser, Councilor Vermillion, Councilor Shankle, Council President Newland, Councilor Robles, and Councilor Klein. Voting Nay: Councilor Childress.

#### **GENERAL BUSINESS**

None.

#### STAFF COMMUNICATION

- City Recorder Teets announced candidates running for Council. They are Ashly Hansen, Martin Ornelas, Leota Childress, Rae Botsford, and Terry Shankle.
- Public Works Division Manager Peters thanked the community for their help and patience during the boil water notice, from the water main breaking. Citizens did a great job.
- Community Development Director Corthell shared the 2022 KATU Explore Report, highlighting Molalla. He also shared a Destination Ready campaign that is being introduced.

#### **COUNCIL COMMUNICATION**

- Councilor Vermillion shared the MRSD and Chamber of Commerce upcoming meeting dates.
- Councilor Shankle had nothing to report.
- Councilor Childress gave an update on Celebrate Molalla. Vendor applications are no longer being accepted, as all spaces have been filled.
- Council President Newland announced the upcoming Parks CPC meeting. Fundraiser ideas and children are welcome! Council President Newland also shared her thanks for everyone involved in National Night Out.
- Councilor Robles shared upcoming Library events. Citizenship classes begin soon, that was announced in english and spanish.
- Councilor Klein announced that the Beautification & Culture CPC is close to having a Mural Ordinance to bring to Council. She also shared that she would not be running for Council this year. She would like to remain involved with the City through other boards and commissions.
- Mayor Keyser shared Celebrate Molalla announcements, information on Hwy 211 construction, and encouraged everyone to support Miss Molalla, now Miss Oregon, Kaya Gathright at the upcoming pageant. Mayor Keyser also announced that he would like to set up a Town Hall meeting for candidates for Council in September.

For the complete video account of the City Council Meeting, please go to YouTube "Molalla City Council Meetings – August 10, 2022"

ADJOURN Mayor Keyser ac	djourned the meeting at 7:47pm.		
wayor regiser at	ajourned the meeting at 7.47pm.		
	Scott Keyser, Mayor	Date	
ATTEST:			
Christie Teets, C	City Recorder		

# OREGON!

#### CITY OF MOLALLA

117 N. Molalla Avenue PO Box 248 Molalla, OR 97038

#### **Staff Report**

**Agenda Category: Consent Agenda** 

Agenda Date: August 24, 2022 From: Andy Peters, PW Division Manager

**Approved by:** Dan Huff, City Manager

**SUBJECT:** 2022 Budgeted Backhoe Purchase

**FISCAL IMPACT:** \$117,083.87

**RECOMMENDATION/RECOMMEND MOTION:** Approve the Purchase of a 2022 John Deere 410L Tractor Loader Backhoe through the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Agency.

#### **BACKGROUND:**

The existing backhoe is a Cat 436 purchased in 1998. This machine can be considered the "swiss army knife" of the public works fleet, used not only for excavation, but also mowing, toeing, grading, demolition, park landscaping, forklifting, and paving.

This replacement has been timed so that the existing machine, though aged, still affords the best possible salvage value to help offset the cost of the new one. The MSRP of the new machine is \$230,571. The machine is available to us through the cooperative purchasing agency Sourcewell at a 44% discount for \$129,119.76. Freight, warranty, and maintenance plans, and a set of forks bring the sale price to \$145,438.27.

Papé has agreed to accept the old backhoe with a trade-in value of \$29,000, bringing the final budget impact to \$117,083.87.

# OREGON

#### CITY OF MOLALLA

117 N. Molalla Avenue PO Box 248 Molalla, OR 97038

#### **Staff Report**

#### **Agenda Category: General Discussion**

**Agenda Date:** August 24, 2022 From: Andy Peters, Public Works Div Manager

Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager

**SUBJECT:** Mercury TMDL Submision to DEQ

FISCAL IMPACT: \$300,000 over 5 years

**RECOMMENDATION/RECOMMEND MOTION:** Approve the Mercury TMDL Implementation Plan

**BACKGROUND:** A total maximum daily load (TMDL) is a regulatory term in the U.S. Clean Water Act, describing a plan for restoring impaired waters that identifies the maximum amount of a pollutant that a body of water can receive while still meeting water quality standards.

The State of Oregon and EPA recently agreed upon updates to the State's TMDL related to Mercury Pollution in the waters of the State. Part of Oregon's plan is to list certain city's as "Designated Management Agencies" (DMAs), one of which is Molalla. All DMAs are required to write a new chapter in their individual TMDL plans which target the reduction of mercury in stormwater in specific ways. The reports from all new DMAs are due to the DEQ by September 3, 2022.

The City of Molalla has been working to implement the new requirements for the past two years and has updated its TMDL to comply with these new rules. Care has been taken to identify, and plan for the implementation of, mercury reduction strategies that will meet the requirements while resulting in the least impact to budgets, staff, and the public. The fiscal impact listed in this staff report is largely related to (1) the installation of a Decant Facility at the City Shops, which is currently under construction, and (2) the beginning of a new program of storm line catch basin cleaning and subsequent debris disposal. This debris must be handled in specific ways due to it's chemical oil-and-grease, and heavy metal constituents (including Mercury). With Council approval, the City will submit this updated version of the full TMDL Document, which now incorporate the Mercury requirements. The next step for TMDL is a required 5-year plan update which the City must submit by next July. TMDL Compliance is an ongoing effort.

## **City of Molalla**Clackamas County, Oregon



### **TMDL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN**

SEPTEMBER 2022



## The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.

1330 Teakwood Avenue Coos Bay, Oregon 97420 (541) 269-0732 www.dyerpart.com 759 West Central Avenue Sutherlin, Oregon 97479 (541) 459-4619 481 S. Main St Lebanon, Oregon 97355 (541) 405-4520

Project No. 100.27

#### City of Molalla Clackamas County, Oregon

### **TMDL Implementation Plan**

Submitted to:
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
Northwest Region
700 NE Multnomah St., Suite 600
Portland, OR 97232

Prepared by:
The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.
481 S. Main St.
Lebanon, OR 97355

Submitted by: City of Molalla P.O. Box 248 Molalla, OR 97038

 Dan Huff, City Manager
  Date

### **Table of Contents**

SECTIO	N 1: INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND	
1.1	Introduction	1-1
1.2		
050510	NO THE DECLUSEMENTS & BARAMETERS	
SECTIO	N 2: TMDL REQUIREMENTS & PARAMETERS	
2.1		
2.2	TMDL Parameters	2-2
2.3	Temperature	2-2
2.4	Bacteria	2-4
2.5	Mercury	2-5
2.6	Pesticides	2-6
2.7	Metals	2-6
SECTIO	N 3: WATER QUALITY EFFORTS	
3.1	Molalla Municipal Code – Public Services	3-1
3.2	Molalla Development Code - Development	
3.3	Molalla Development Code – Additional Regulations	
3.4	Molalla Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction	3-2
3.5	Parks Plan	3-4
3.6	Street Sweeping Program	3-5
3.7	Stormwater System Maintenance	
3.8	Pet Waste	
3.9	Water Conservation Outreach	
SECTIO	N 4: IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES	
4.1	Stormwater System Planning	4-1
4.2	Wastewater System Planning	
4.3	Riparian Protection and Restoration	
4.4	Public Education and Outreach	
4.5	Public Involvement and Participation	
4.6	Illegal Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE)	
	Construction Site Runoff and Erosion Control	4-3
	Post-Construction Site Runoff for New Development and Redevelopment	
	Animal Waste Management	
	Mercury and Pollutants	
SECTIO	N 5: MONITORING, REPORTING, COMPLIANCE & FUNDING	
5.1	Public Involvement	5-1
_	Land Use Compliance	
	Funding	
5.5		J-1

**SECTION 6: TMDL IMPLEMENTATION MATRIX** 

#### SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND

#### 1.1 Introduction

This document is the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan for the City of Molalla. This plan is intended to comply with the Willamette Basin TMDL order and to meet pollutant load allocations for the Molalla-Pudding Subbasin, as approved by the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in December 2008. The goal of this Implementation Plan is to minimize and reduce temperature, bacteria and mercury contributions to surface waters within the jurisdictional control of the City of Molalla.

Through a multi-faceted approach of monitoring, land use and development standards, public operations, partnerships, and education, this plan targets sources of contamination within the City's authority.

#### 1.2 Background

The Molalla-Pudding Subbasin (approximately 878 square miles in area) is located in the north-eastern portion of the middle Willamette Basin. The Molalla River flows into the Willamette River between river miles 35 and 36 and the Pudding River is a tributary to the Molalla River less than a mile upstream of the Molalla River mouth. The subbasin is located within Clackamas and Marion Counties and includes the communities of Woodburn, Mt. Angel, Silverton, Canby, Molalla, Hubbard, Gervais, Aurora, Brooks, Barlow, Colton and Scotts Mills and portions of Salem, Keizer, Donald, and Wilsonville.

The City of Molalla is a fast growing rural community located in the southwest section of Clackamas County. The City's population was estimated to be 9,910 in 2020 by the Portland State University Population Center.

The City is approximately 14 miles south of Oregon City via State Highway 213, approximately 25 miles northeast of Salem, and approximately 27 miles southeast of Portland. The surrounding area around the City of Molalla is generally used for agricultural purposes. Highway 213 runs north-south through the western end of the City, and Highway 211 runs east-west through the midsection of the City. Figure 1.2.1 illustrates the location of the City.

The City is located at approximately river mile 20 of the Molalla River, which is located about a mile east of the City's current urban growth boundary (UGB). Two branches of Creamery Creek flow through the north end of the City and run generally from the southeast to the northwest. These branches meet east of Highway 213, and Creamery Creek flows into the Molalla River several miles outside the UGB. Bear Creek, which runs generally parallel to and south of Creamery Creek, flows through the south end of the UGB before turning northwest through the City. Bear Creek exits through the west end of the City before eventually flowing into the Pudding River.

#### FIGURE 1.2.1 CITY LOCATION



In 2001, the City completed a Local Wetland Inventory (LWI) and riparian assessment that describes and maps potentially jurisdictional wetlands and streams within the City's UGB. The LWI was approved by the Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL) in March of 2004 and notes the three drainage basins within the City of Molalla Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) as follows:

- The northeastern portion of the UGB is within the Molalla River basin; drainage from this basin flows northeastward via a natural drainage way to the Molalla River.
- The central portion of the UGB is within the Creamery Creek basin; Creamery Creek flows diagonally from the southeast to the northwest before reaching the Molalla River north of the UGB.
- The southern portion of the UGB is within the Bear Creek basin. Bear Creek joins Kaiser Creek (located south of the UGB) to flow to the Pudding River many miles to the west.

The City operates and discharges treated wastewater under Waste Discharge Permit No. 101514 from the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). From May 1<sup>st</sup> to October 31<sup>st</sup>, discharge to waters of the state is prohibited, and recycled water is land applied onto DEQ approved sites. The recycled water used for irrigation is treated to the same standards as effluent discharged to the Molalla River, except that effluent discharged to the river is dechlorinated using ascorbic acid (Vitamin C). From November 1<sup>st</sup> to April 30<sup>th</sup>, effluent is discharged to the Molalla River in accordance with the NPDES Permit.

#### **SECTION 2: TMDL REQUIREMENTS & PARAMETERS**

#### 2.1 TMDL Requirements

The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) established a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for the Willamette Basin in an order signed on September 21, 2006 which was later revised to incorporate mercury requirements and established in another order signed on February 4, 2021. The TMDL requires designated agencies and municipalities to implement actions to improve water quality. The pollutants addressed in the 2006 Willamette Basin TMDL and the 2019 Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury TMDL that specifically affect Molalla are bacteria, temperature, and mercury.

The Clean Water Act of 1977 authorizes the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to "restore and maintain the physical, chemical, and biological integrity of all waters of the nation". In response to the Clean Water Act, the EPA designated state agencies to develop water quality standards, perform water quality monitoring to understand current conditions, determine sources of pollution, and develop TMDLs as a tool to improve water quality. As a component of the overall effort to protect and restore the beneficial uses of Oregon's water bodies, the DEQ issued TMDLs for the entire Willamette Basin.

The TMDL process begins when a stream, lake, or river does not meet water quality standards and is classified as water quality-limited on the state's 303(d) list. TMDLs identify the maximum amount of a specific pollutant that can be present in a water body without violating water quality standards. This is known as the loading capacity.

After extensive water quality monitoring and modeling efforts, TMDLs establish the difference between the loading capacity and the current pollutant load. TMDLs are expressed as numeric standards or percent pollutant reductions that need to be met to bring water bodies into compliance with water quality standards. The difference between the current load and the loading capacity is known as excess load.

The excess load is split up between the different sources of pollution according to their contribution to the overall pollution load. Any difference between the waterway's loading capacity and the current pollutant load must be mitigated by pollution reduction activities. The DEQ develops waste load allocations for point sources such as wastewater treatment plants and industrial discharges. They develop load allocations for non-point pollution from agricultural, urban, and forestry lands such as erosion, animal wastes, and stormwater.

The Oregon Administrative Rules in Chapter 340 Division 42 address the requirements for local governments and other agencies to develop TMDL Implementation Plans. Responsible parties that are able to implement pollution reduction strategies are classified as Designated Management Agencies (DMAs). In the Willamette Basin, DMAs include federal agencies such as the Bureau of Land Management, state agencies such as the Department of Forestry and the Department of Agriculture, counties, cities, and others.

The Oregon Department of Agriculture (ODA) is working with farmers to address contributions from farmland, the Oregon Department of Forestry is addressing contributions from forestland, and federal land management agencies are implementing TMDLs according to their internal

procedures. Point sources, such as wastewater treatment facilities will be addressed through their individual permitting processes. Cities and counties must address contributions through the development of Implementation Plans.

According to OAR 340-042-0080, TMDL Implementation Plans must include the following elements:

- 1. Identify the management strategies the DMA or other responsible person will use to achieve load allocations and reduce pollutant loading;
- 2. Provide a timeline for implementing management strategies and a schedule for completing measurable milestones;
- **3.** Provide for performance monitoring with a plan for periodic review and revision of the implementation plan;
- **4.** To the extent required by ORS 197.180 and OAR chapter 340, division 18, provide evidence of compliance with applicable statewide land use requirements; and
- 5. Provide any other analyses or information specified in the WOMP.

#### 2.2 TMDL Parameters

Temperature, bacteria, and mercury are the three parameters that have been included in all of the Willamette Basin TMDLs. Although other parameters are included in sub basin TMDLs, these three pollutants are the major concerns throughout the entire Willamette Basin.

The following subchapters contain brief summaries of TMDL parameters, but more in-depth information on these parameters and the processes used to develop the TMDLs can be found in Chapters 2, 3, and 4 of the *Willamette Basin TMDL* (DEQ, 2006), the *Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury Total Maximum Daily Load* (DEQ, 2019), and the *Molalla-Pudding Subbasin TMDL and WQMP* (DEQ, 2008). The summaries below include basic information about the characteristics of the parameter, the potential sources of each pollutant, waterways in the region not meeting water quality standards, and a brief list of potential strategies to address each parameter.

#### 2.3 Temperature

The temperature problem in the Willamette Basin is the water is too warm at certain times of the year which poses a threat to cold water fish species such as salmon. This is known as thermal pollution. Removal or disturbance of streamside vegetation is the primary activity that negatively impacts stream temperature due to the loss of shade cover, but water temperature is also affected by erosion, loss of channel complexity, low stream flows, dams, and heated discharges from industrial or municipal operations.

The major sources of thermal pollution that the DEQ evaluated for the Willamette Basin temperature TMDLs are wastewater treatment facilities, dam and reservoir operations, and the loss of streamside vegetation. Point sources will continue to be regulated through the existing National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit methods. Sewage treatment

plants, as well as large industrial permitted discharges, will be allocated heat loads during the next renewal of their NPDES permits.

The focus of the non-point source temperature TMDL is to mitigate the removal or disturbance of streamside vegetation. The most effective way to minimize thermal pollution is by reducing the amount of solar radiation that reaches the water. This is accomplished by protecting and reestablishing vegetation along waterways to provide shade cover. Temperature benefits can also be realized through stream restoration projects including stream bank stabilization, increasing stream flows, decreasing channel width, and restoring channel complexity. Attainment and preservation of effective shade levels on smaller tributaries associated with system potential vegetation will eliminate most anthropogenic nonpoint source heat loads. Per the Molalla-Pudding Subbasin TMDL, surrogate measure is percent effective shade targets and a heat load equivalent of 0.05°C of the Human Use Allowance (DEQ, 2008).

Temperature TMDLs have been developed for the Willamette sub basins and mainstream Willamette River. The DEQ used two different approaches in developing the temperature TMDLs. One TMDL focuses on the mainstream Willamette River and its major tributaries up to the first dam. Using the other approach, the DEQ developed TMDLs on a more localized scale for stream segments upriver from dams.

The maximum temperature increase in the waters of the state from all human activities can be no more than 0.3° C. This was designated by the State of Oregon in Oregon Administrative Rule 340-041-0028. In the TMDLs, this allowance is known as the Human Use Allowance and is split up between various sources of human-caused thermal pollution. Models indicate that restoring shade cover to natural levels could reduce temperatures in the mainstream Willamette River by 0.5° Celsius (DEQ, 2006).

The amount allocated to each source of thermal pollution varies by location. Generally, non-point sources are allowed to contribute no more than 0.05° C, and point sources can contribute up to .25° C. The TMDL allocates 0.05° C to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Willamette Project reservoirs. The DEQ factors in 0.05° as a reserve capacity that will be set aside now to accommodate future growth by meeting the increased demand for industrial and municipal wastewater discharges.

On average, waterways in the Willamette Basin need to receive 23 percent less thermal input than is currently being received (DEQ, 2006). The major consequence of the temperature TMDLs is the need to protect and restore streamside vegetation. Thermal pollution can be addressed by a variety of measures, including:

- Develop materials for landowners explaining the benefits of preserving natural streamside vegetation.
- Implement demonstration projects on public land to illustrate potential riparian management techniques.
- Actively restore riparian areas on public land and help private property owners restore riparian areas on private land.
- Institute a riparian ordinance that prohibits the removal of native streamside vegetation.
- Acquire critical streamside property.

Become involved in a water quality trading program.

#### 2.4 Bacteria

The Molalla-Pudding subbasin TMDL addresses seven bacteria-impaired stream reaches from both the 2004-06 and 2002 303(d) lists. The 2002 bacteria listings for the Molalla River from river mile 0 to 25 and the summer (June 1 – September 30) listing for the Pudding River from river mile 0 to 35.4 had been removed from the 2004-06 303(d) list, but a review of data indicated that the bacteria criteria could be exceeded at the highest stream flows on the Molalla River and during the summer on the Pudding River. For those reasons, a bacteria TMDL was completed for the Molalla River and the summer season for the Pudding River. Analysis of bacteria data, stream flows, and precipitation indicates that the main sources of bacterial contamination in the Molalla and Pudding Rivers and their tributaries are nonpoint sources. Nonpoint sources include agricultural runoff and urban stormwater, though runoff from forestry land use does not appear to cause the bacteria criteria to be exceeded. Load allocations are expressed in terms of a surrogate measure – percent reduction in bacteria concentrations. Load allocations apply generally by land use, basin-wide, and year-round. Stream and season-specific load allocations were calculated for streams where sufficient stream flow data were available to calculate a loading capacity and excess load. Load allocations, as percent reductions, were reduced until no one sample (based on available data) exceeded the single sample criterion of 406 E.coli organisms per 100 milliliters.

The Molalla-Pudding Subbasin load reduction for the listed waterbodies range from 75-87% during the summer months (June 1-September 30) and 70-92% in fall-winter-spring months (October 1 – May 31). The Willamette Basin Bacteria TMDL states that urban areas must reduce their bacteria contributions by 80-94% to meet water quality standards. According to the Willamette Basin TMDL, point sources in the upper reaches of the Willamette Basin cause less than a one percent increase in the bacteria concentrations over natural conditions (DEQ, 2006). Accordingly, the focus of the TMDL implementation efforts should be on non-point sources.

Bacteria violations of water quality standards are most common in creeks and streams that drain urban and agricultural land. The mainstream Willamette River is water quality limited for bacteria during the high flows of the fall-winter-spring months, but is in compliance during summer low flows when there is the least amount of runoff.

Above Willamette Falls, violations in the bacteria standards are usually single sample events that are related to high levels of precipitation and the resulting runoff. The major sources of bacteria in the urban and rural residential areas are stormwater runoff, erosion, domestic and wild animal waste, failing septic systems, and municipal sewer overflows. Other sources of bacteria include livestock, irrigation runoff, and stream bank erosion.

Local jurisdictions can focus on urban issues to ensure that the quality of water does not degrade due to current land use, population growth, and land use changes. Strategy options to address bacteria in the urban area include:

- Preventing erosion and controlling sediment from new construction.
- Detaining and treating stormwater prior to discharge into waterways.

- Keeping stormwater conveyance channels clear of organic matter.
- Controlling animal waste.
- Maintaining and restoring riparian buffers.
- Encouraging better site design to decrease runoff.
- Preventing non-stormwater and illegal discharges.
- Developing stewardship and educational programs to prevent pollution.
- Street sweeping.

#### 2.5 Mercury

Mercury is a very complex pollutant. The way it acts in nature and the different forms it takes make it difficult to understand and accurately monitor. With no regard to local, state, or even international boundaries, mercury can be transported in the air after soil disturbance, automobile emissions, and industrial emissions across many miles and deposited by rainfall.

Air deposition from emissions is one of many ways that mercury moves through the environment. Some point sources, including timber processing plants and mills, discharge low levels of mercury in their wastewater effluent. Stormwater runoff suspends mercury molecules and carries them to waterways.

Mercury is naturally occurring at low levels, but when native soil erodes at an accelerated rate those molecules are released in abnormal amounts. Mercury is also set in motion when sediment that has been deposited long ago is re-suspended due to high water flows or a significant disturbance.

High mercury levels in the Willamette Basin have resulted in fish consumption advisories. To protect public health, especially that of pregnant women and young children, the Department of Human Services (DHS) has issued advisories recommending that people limit the amount of fish they consume from certain waterways. For example, the DHS specifically advises against consuming large amounts of fish from the Willamette River due to the high levels of mercury.

Despite the uncertainty and complex nature of mercury, there are steps that can be taken to minimize the amount of mercury that is deposited in waterways and accumulated in the tissues of fish, wildlife, and humans. One of the primary goals of the Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury TMDL is to reduce mercury levels in the basin to a point where fish are no longer unsafe to eat.

To begin addressing the mercury problem in the Willamette Basin, DEQ developed wasteload allocations for point sources and load allocations for non-point sources (DEQ, 2019). The DEQ developed allocations for the Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury TMDL and were calculated as percent reductions and compared to the load capacity for non-point sources and point sources (DEQ, 2019).

The DEQ expects all non-point sources to begin implementing mercury reduction management strategies and policies based on the load allocations defined in the Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury TMDL (DEQ, 2019).

Implementation plans must include a mercury reduction strategy that incorporates the six stormwater control measures as defined in the 2019 Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury TMDL. The minimum stormwater control measures required by the DEQ include:

- 1. Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping for Municipal Operations
- 2. Public Education and Outreach
- 3. Public Involvement and Participation
- 4. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
- 5. Construction Site Runoff Control
- **6.** Post Construction Site Runoff for New Development and Redevelopment

DMAs have an array of options to reduce mercury pollution. Many of the management strategies that address mercury pollution also address bacteria and temperature. Potential management strategies include:

- Working with dentist offices to properly dispose of mercury wastes.
- Establishing a stormwater plan.
- Stormwater detention and treatment prior to discharge into waterways.
- Establishing an erosion prevention and sediment control program.
- Regular street sweeping and stormwater system maintenance.
- Limiting land disturbance whenever possible.

#### 2.6 Pesticides

The primary pesticides of concern in the Pudding River Watershed are the listed pesticides: chlordane, dieldrin, and DDT (dichlorodiphenyltrichloroethane), including the DDT metabolites DDE and DDD. Chlordane, dieldrin, and DDT are toxic organochlorine pesticides. Historically, DDT, dieldrin, and chlordane were used extensively as agricultural insecticides and to control insect disease vectors such as mosquitoes. Load allocations for DDT and dieldrin are expressed as percent reductions necessary to achieve the human health criteria based on water and fish ingestion. The Molalla-Pudding Subbasin TMDL requires a 30% reduction in DDT and a 90% reduction in dieldrin on the Pudding River and its tributaries. The TMDL also uses a surrogate measure of total suspended solids (TSS), which correlates strongly with DDT, to set targets that will achieve partial load allocations for non-point sources in all sectors. A 96 -hour average TSS target of 15 mg/L for the Pudding River will partially achieve the load allocations.

#### 2.7 Metals

DEQ and other entities have identified exceedances of iron, manganese and arsenic water quality criteria in the Molalla-Pudding Subbasin. Iron, manganese and arsenic are naturally occurring substances and particularly prevalent in soils deriving from eroded volcanic rocks. DEQ's data review and analysis of metals correlation with stream flow and precipitation supports the conclusion that manganese and arsenic are present in the Pudding River at natural concentrations and are not concentrated by human activities. Iron concentrations correlate with stream flow and precipitation and DEQ's conclusion is that human caused activities that lead to eroding stream

banks and runoff may concentrate iron in surface water at higher than natural concentrations. The Molalla-Pudding Subbasin TMDL sets a target of 6 mg/L total suspended solids (TSS) to meet 7-79% iron reduction based on Pudding River flow.

#### **SECTION 3: WATER QUALITY EFFORTS**

The City of Molalla currently has several efforts underway that address water quality issues. Molalla's Municipal Code and 2017 Molalla Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction include erosion control requirements, riparian area and tree protection, vegetation and tree planting, stormwater quality design standards, protection of the storm drainage system, and encouragement of low impact development.

Additionally, the City maintains street sweeping and animal waste pick up programs, has adopted a Parks Master Plan that promotes the protection and enhancement of vegetation and riparian areas, and continues efforts to educate the public about water conservation.

#### 3.1 Molalla Municipal Code – Public Services

The City of Molalla Municipal Code, Title 13-Public Services provides requirements for the protection of the City's storm drainage system by reducing illegal discharge and cross-connections. Code sections in place to protect the storm drainage system are summarized below.

#### 13-08.300 Abandonment of Private Sewer Systems

When public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private sewage disposal system, and upon notification to the property owner from the City, a direct connection shall be made to the public sewer, and any septic tanks, cesspools, and similar private sewage disposal facilities shall be decommissioned, abandoned and filled with suitable material.

#### 13-08.840 Discharge to Storm Drains

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into any storm drain any matter other than unpolluted runoff or storm drainage.

#### 3.2 Molalla Municipal Code - Development

The City of Molalla completed and adopted revisions to the City of Molalla Development Code on October 11, 2017. Code sections in place to uphold water quality efforts are summarized below.

#### 17-2.4.030 Water Resources (WR) Overlay

The WR Overlay District has been established and is intended to protect and enhance significant wetlands, stream corridors and floodplains identified in the Molalla Natural Features Inventory by conserving significant riparian corridors, undeveloped floodplains, and locally significant wetlands in keeping with the requirements of State Planning Goal 5 (Natural Resources) and applicable state statutes, administrative rules, and the Molalla Comprehensive Plan.

The WR Overlay District includes the riparian corridor extending upland 50 feet from the tops-of-bank of Bear Creek, Creamery Creek and the Molalla River. Where a significant wetland is located fully or partially within the riparian corridor, the riparian corridor shall extend 50 feet upland from the edge of the wetland and the riparian area for isolated wetlands shall extend 25 feet from the edge of the wetland. The district also includes the 100-year flood plain on properties identified as vacant or partially vacant on the 2007 Molalla Buildable Lands Inventory.

Native vegetation removal and building, paving, grading, and filling are restricted within the WR Overlay riparian corridors.

#### 17-3.2 – Building Orientation and Design/Non-Residential Buildings

Site design standards for non-residential buildings may be waived if a significant tree or other environmental feature precludes strict adherence to the standard and will be retained and incorporated into the design.

#### 17-3.4.030 – Landscaping and Screening

All portions of lots not otherwise developed with buildings, accessory structures, vehicle maneuvering areas, or parking lots shall be landscaped. All lots shall conform to the minimum landscape areas standards for the applicable zoning district, as outlined in the Code. A combination of deciduous and deciduous and evergreen trees, shrubs, and ground covers shall be used for all planted areas. Existing mature trees that can thrive in a developed area and that do not conflict with other provisions of the Code shall be retained where specimens are in good health, have desirable aesthetic characteristics, and do not present a hazard.

#### 3.3 Molalla Municipal Code – Additional Regulations

The City of Molalla Municipal Code, Title 21-Additional Regulations includes provisions for excavation, fills, grading and erosion control. The Title 21 Code section in place to minimize erosion is summarized below.

#### 21-70 Excavation, Fills, Grading and Erosion Control

Applications, provided by the Planning Director, shall be completed for grading, excavation, fill and erosion control. Excavation or fill shall not create a slope that causes surface drainage to flow over adjacent public or private property in a volume or location materially different from that which existed before the excavation or fill. Surface and subsurface drainage caused or affected by changing of grade or uncovering subsurface sources such as springs shall be collected by an approved means and carried to an approved discharge point.

The faces of cut and fill slopes shall be prepared and maintained to control against erosion. This control shall consist of effective planting or such other measures as the Public Works Director may determine. The protection for the slopes shall be installed as soon as practicable and prior to final approval.

#### 3.4 2017 Molalla Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction

The City of Molalla adopted the current 2017 Molalla Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (PW Standards) on September 6, 2017. Sections found in the PW Standards related to water quality efforts are summarized below.

#### 1.17.16 Preservation, Restoration, and Cleanup

Street Cleanup – On all construction projects, the contractor shall clean spilled soil, mud, rock, gravel, or other foreign material caused by construction operations from sidewalks, gutters, streets, and roads at the conclusion of each day's operation.

#### 1.18.4 Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

It is the goal of the City to eliminate or minimize to the extent feasible all sediment and other pollutants reaching the public storm and surface water system resulting from development, construction, grading, excavating, clearing and any other activity that accelerates erosion. It is the policy of the City to require temporary and permanent measures for all construction projects to lessen the adverse effects of construction on the environment. All projects shall have a current DEQ 1200-C permit, as required by the State of Oregon, and include properly installed, operated, and maintained temporary and permanent erosion-control measures as provided in the PW Standards or in an approved erosion control plan.

Existing vegetation shall be protected and left in place whenever practicable. Where existing vegetation has been removed, or the original land contours have been disturbed, the site shall be revegetated, and the vegetation established, as soon as practicable.

#### 3.1.2 General Design Requirements (Stormwater)

In developing drainage plans for stormwater management, the design engineer is encouraged to provide, to the extent feasible, on-site stormwater management through the use of Low Impact Development (LID) principles. The primary Stormwater management objective for LID is to match pre-development (bare site) hydrologic condition over the full range of rainfall intensities and durations as detailed in Section 3.3 of the PW Standards. LID principals include, but are not limited to:

- Integration of stormwater management into site planning activities.
- Use of natural hydrologic functions as the integrating framework.
- Minimize site disturbance.
- Focus on prevention rather than mitigation.
- Emphasize simple, nonstructural, low-tech, and low cost methods.
- Manage stormwater as close to the source as possible.
- Distribute small-scale LID techniques throughout the landscape.
- Create a multifunctional landscape.

#### 3.3.9 Detention/Retention Facility Protection (Stormwater)

Stormwater quantity detention/retention facilities and stormwater quality facilities shall be designed to prevent scouring at the inflow structure(s) by use of an engineered energy-dissipating device such as a Swale Inflow Spreader or other method approved by the Public Works Department authorized representative.

#### 3.3.10 Drainage Report (Stormwater)

A drainage report, prepared by a professional engineer registered in the State of Oregon, shall be submitted for proposed developments. The detailed report shall include a description of the land cover resulting from the proposed project, a description of the potential stormwater quantity and

quality impacts of the project, a description of the proposed methods for collection and conveyance of runoff from the project site, and proposed methods for control of any increase in stormwater quantity and for maintenance of stormwater quality.

#### 3.5.1 Water Quality Facility Design Standards (Stormwater)

New development and other activities that create new impervious surfaces or increase in the amount of stormwater runoff or pollution leaving the site are require to construct or fund permanent water quality facilities to reduce contaminants entering the stormwater and surface water system. Stormwater quality facilities shall be designed to capture and treat 80% of the average annual runoff volume, to the maximum extent possible, with the goal of 70% total suspended solids (TSS) removal.

#### 3.10 Stormwater Quality Facility Design

The purpose of Section 10 is to outline the design and construction guidelines for water quality facilities in the City of Molalla. The guidelines set forth in Section 10 may be used to comply with the water quality facility design standards in Subsection 3.5. It is the responsibility of the design engineer to determine the appropriate design criteria that ensures compliance with the PW Standards, in combination with federal, state and local laws and ordinances. Facility design criteria are presented for the following facility types:

- Biofiltration Swales
- Sand Filters
- Wet Ponds
- Extended Wet Ponds
- Extended Dry Ponds
- Wetlands
- Infiltration Trenches
- Infiltration Basins

#### 3.5 Parks Plan

In 2014 the City of Molalla adopted a Parks Master Plan that promotes the protection and enhancement of vegetation and riparian areas.

The City currently has a significant amount of passive open space and exceeds recommended standards for natural areas based on the current supply. Community members have expressed support for preserving these spaces and acquiring additional open space throughout the City as new development occurs. The plan recommends that the City incorporate the following types of areas in establishing and maintaining the city-wide open space system:

- Continue to require dedication of a specific percentage of open space as part of the subdivision and residential development review processes.
- Combine designation of open space with protection of environmentally sensitive or natural areas.
- In targeting specific areas for open space acquisition, dedication or protection, prioritize natural area and open space protection and management to maximize natural resource values.

• Identify, acquire and conserve key open space areas adjacent to proposed trail corridors or linear parks, including the Bear Creek corridor. Use these to enhance the trail system and provide for well-connected pockets of open space throughout the community.

#### 3.6 Street Sweeping Program

The City of Molalla maintains a street sweeping program that utilizes a City owned street sweeper. The City has adopted a public works policy that requires department personnel to track street sweeping activities using a street sweeping zone map and summary log. The summary log provides personnel a method to track the zones and/or streets that were cleaned and the opportunity to report any noticeable sources of pollution. In 2021, the City estimates that 756 lane miles were swept as part of the City's sweeping program which is estimated to have removed over 872,000 lbs of debris from City Streets.

#### 3.7 Stormwater System Maintenance

In order to continue to provide a viable stormwater collection system, the City maintains a budget within the Public Works Department for stormwater maintenance. A full time City crew is available for the upkeep of catch basins, manholes and pipelines.

#### 3.8 Pet Waste

Dog waste stations have been installed in Sheets Field, Pocket, Basketball, Clark, Fox, Ivor Davies and Long city parks. The City supplied 22,745 bags in City Parks in 2021 and maintains a stock of replacement waste bags. The City replenishes the waste station bags on a regular basis.

#### 3.9 Water Conservation Outreach

In 2015 the City of Molalla included approximately 2,900 water conservation flyers in their May residential and commercial water bills. The flyers were also handed out at the City's 2015 National Night out, to further promote water conservation. Additionally, the City's website includes a tip sheet for indoor and outdoor water conservation.

#### **SECTION 4: IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES**

The City of Molalla will continue with the water quality efforts outlined in Section 3 and work to continue implementing the strategies and activities provided in this section. The City's goal is to adopt this Plan and utilize the implementation strategies to reduce contributions of increased temperatures, bacteria, mercury and pollutants to surface waters within the City's jurisdiction.

#### 4.1 Stormwater System Planning

Stormwater planning and management is the City's primary focus for addressing the reduction of TMDL pollutants. Coordinated efforts by all City departments within the City are needed to manage stormwater and reduce pollutants covered in the Willamette Basin and Molalla-Pudding Subbasin TMDL.

The City will continue to follow the recommendations of the 2003 Stormwater Master Plan to implement upgrades and improvements, in order to maintain a well working stormwater conveyance system. The master plan will continue to be available on the City's website to help educate developers and the public about the stormwater issues and hydrology of the City.

As the existing Stormwater Master Plan reaches the end of its 20-year design life, it will require updating. The city has tentatively scheduled to begin work on updating the Stormwater Master Plan during the 2022/23 fiscal year. The new plan will be used to identify gaps in the existing pollution control strategies in order to help the City identify ways to address these gaps. The updated Stormwater Master Plan will also include water quality protection mechanisms to ensure that future stormwater system expansions and upgrades are designed and constructed with the consideration of water quality.

Revisions to the Molalla Development Code and PW Standards have incorporated requirements to uphold stormwater water quality efforts and erosion control for new development and construction. The City will work to educate the public and developers on the implementation of these codes and standards to ensure the water quality standards set forth are met.

#### 4.2 Wastewater System Planning

In 2017, the City began work on updating their 2000 Wastewater Facilities Master Plan. This work included an extensive evaluation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and collection system. The new *Wastewater Facility and Collection System Master Plan* was completed and adopted by City Council on December 12, 2018.

The WWTP evaluation provided recommendations for plant upgrades and modifications to address discharge loading. The update was completed and the recommended improvements that were provided in the update were made with respect to mass load limits and temperature compliance with their NPDES discharge permit.

The collection system evaluation focused on Inflow and Infiltration (I/I) issues and provided recommendations to address areas of concern. With the adoption of the new facilities plan, the City has established an I/I reduction program that focuses on the decrease of system I/I and the elimination of cross connections between the storm and sanitary sewer systems.

#### 4.3 Riparian Protection and Restoration

The City of Molalla has been proactive in their efforts to protect riparian areas within the City. The City's development code has established a Water Resources Overlay District, which protects the riparian corridors of Bear Creek, Creamery Creek and the Molalla River. The City will continue to adhere to the development code and work to educate developers and public about the importance of the code and the protection of the riparian areas.

The City has adopted a Parks Plan that recommends the protection of environmentally sensitive or natural areas. The Parks Plan provides recommended trail projects that provide the opportunity to improve riparian and stream areas. The following trail projects were identified as Tier 1 (5-15 year implementation) projects by the Project Advisory Committee and will be considered by the City when budget allows and/or development occurs in the proposed trial area:

- Molalla Rail Trail
- Bear Creek Greenway
- Land Lab Trail
- Cole Avenue Trail
- Rail High School Connector

#### 4.4 Public Education and Outreach

The City will continue to use existing methods to inform and distribute information to residents and developers about the importance of water quality and conservation and protection and enhancement of existing vegetation in riparian areas. These methods include the City's website, City Hall, monthly billing statements, and City Staff meetings.

The City of Molalla has partnered with the Molalla Area Library District to begin a divergent process of generating ideas for an outreach program. Updates will be reported in the Annual TMDL submittal. The City will explore an educational /outreach program to provide a maintenance plan for privately owned storm water facilities.

Building relationships with local watershed groups will also be considered as budget and staff availability allows. Fostering these relationships will provide the City the opportunity to educate the public on restoration and enhancement opportunities promoted by these groups.

The City will record and evaluate all information encompassed within the education and outreach programs.

#### 4.5 Public Involvement and Participation

The City is currently working to implement a public involvement and participation program that will provide opportunities for the public to effectively participate in the development of stormwater control measures. To facilitate public involvement and participation, the City will implement a web-based community engagement platform "The Current", that will provide

contact information and educational materials to increase involvement and participation opportunities for the public.

#### 4.6 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE)

To detect and eliminate illicit discharges into the stormwater conveyance system the City will begin to develop an illicit discharge detection and elimination plan. The City is scheduled to begin Stormwater Master Planning in FY 22/23 which will result in gap analysis between stormwater mapping and requirements of the *Final Revised Willamette Basin Mercury TMDL (DEQ, 2019)*.

The City enforces Illicit discharges prohibitions through a Code Enforcement Office. The City has an established Municipal Code related to Surface Water Management (Chapter 13.13), including clauses related to illicit discharges, and stormwater parameters (Temp, pH, etc.).

To track implementation of the IDDE program requirements, the City will assess progress towards implementation of the program. The TMDL Annual Reports will include the number of code enforcement cases related to IDDE.

The City will continue to provide preventative measures to address illegal discharge of waste. The City will continue to promote the annual Spring Cleanup provided by Molalla Sanitary Services. While many items that can contribute to illegal discharge are accepted at this event (motor oil and household appliances), hazardous wastes are not. For hazardous waste disposal, the City will continue to provide information to the public regarding the availability of hazardous waste drop off at Oregon Metro, located in Oregon City.

The City provides a pharmaceutical disposal facility in the Police Department located at City Hall. The City will maintain this facility and continue to provide information about proper disposal and use of this facility on their website. The website and brochure can be viewed from the following webpage links:

- https://www.clackamasproviders.org/drug-take-back-boxes/
- https://www.clackamasproviders.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/BB-BrochureFINAL.pdf

The City has budgeted to provide portable toilets for public use in parks and areas, with no public facilities, during City funded events.

#### 4.7 Construction Site Runoff and Erosion Control

As discussed in Section 3, the goal of the City's current Public Works Design Standards is to eliminate or minimize, to the extent feasible, all sediment and other pollutants reaching the public storm and surface water system resulting from development, construction, grading, excavating, clearing and any other activity that accelerates erosion.

The City requires temporary and permanent measures for all construction projects to lessen the adverse effects of construction on the environment. The City has established Municipal Code Section 13.13.600 for construction activities which require erosion prevention and sediment

control and established Municipal Code sections 13.13.700-13.13.720 which address violations progressively.

All projects are required to have a current DEQ 1200-C permit, as required by the State of Oregon, and include properly installed, operated, and maintained temporary and permanent erosion-control measures as provided in the Standards or in an approved erosion control plan. The City has established Public Works Design Standards that include reference to DEQ in Section 1.18.4 for all projects that meet 1200-C criteria.

The City has established requirements for each Civil Design Plan to include Erosion Control Plans and will continue efforts to ensure that all new development plans incorporate the required erosion control. The City will also continue project inspection efforts to make certain that the requirements of the design standards are adhered to.

The City will continue efforts to manage the Water Resources Overlay District, which was established to protect and enhance wetlands, stream corridors and floodplains and lessen the amount of land vulnerable to excessive erosion and reduce activities that create unnecessary erosion and sediment runoff in these areas. The Annual Reports will include number of Projects that required Site Runoff Program implementation.

#### 4.8 Post-Construction Site Runoff for New Development and Redevelopment

The City's Water Resources Overlay District will continue to develop, implement, and enforce programs to reduce discharges of pollutants and control post-construction stormwater runoff from new development and redevelopment project sites. The City shall implement a Water Resources Overlay District program for monitoring post-construction site runoff.

The City plans to implement the following strategies for post-construction site runoff from project sites discharging stormwater to the storm water conveyance system that create or replace 10,890 square feet (one quarter of an acre) or more of new impervious surface area:

- 1. The City shall adopt Public Works Standards for stormwater retention and water quality facilities to specify the stormwater controls at all qualifying sites.
- 2. The City Public Works Standards shall require predevelopment hydrology characteristics for site-specific stormwater management that target natural surface or predevelopment hydrological function through the installation and long-term operation and maintenance of stormwater controls.
- **3.** Maintain Public Works Standards that require all private storm facilities to enter into System Maintenance Agreements with the City prior to Certificates of Occupancy being issued.

The City will target natural surface or predevelopment hydrologic function of new development or redevelopment and will retain rainfall on-site to minimize the offsite discharge of precipitation by utilization of stormwater controls that infiltrate and evapotranspirate stormwater. Stormwater quality facilities shall be designed to capture and treat 80% of the average annual runoff volume, to the maximum extent possible, with the goal of 70% total suspended solids (TSS) removal.

Impervious surfaces shall include pavement, gravel roads, buildings, public and private roadways, and all other surfaces with similar runoff characteristics. The removal efficiency standard for TSS specifies only the design requirements. It is not intended as a basis for performance evaluation or compliance determination of a stormwater quality control facility installed or constructed pursuant to this section. If an on-site water quality facility cannot be constructed to treat the runoff from the development's impervious surface, then with the approval of the Public Works Department authorized representative, an on- or off-site water quality facility may be designed to treat runoff from an equivalent area of adjacent untreated impervious surfaces. The water quality facility shall meet all applicable requirements of these standards.

The City shall maintain records of post-construction site runoff programs and installations and shall document post-construction activities in its Project Management Systems and report as needed in TMDL Annual Reports.

#### 4.9 Animal Waste Management

The City will continue to maintain and stock the dog waste stations have been installed in City parks as detailed in Section 3.

#### 4.10 Mercury and Pollutants

Because mercury and pollutant reduction encompass many of the implementation activities and water quality efforts outlined in Sections 3 and 4 of this plan, the City's overall goal to reduce these contaminants is to adhere to the implementation strategies. These strategies include stormwater system planning, erosion control standards, limiting land disturbance, reducing hazardous waste discharge and street sweeping.

## SECTION 5: MONITORING, REPORTING, COMPLIANCE & FUNDING

The City of Molalla understands the importance of monitoring the implementation strategies addressed in this TMDL Implementation Plan. The City will actively track the implementation progress of the strategies as outlined in this Plan and TMDL Implementation Matrix (Section 6). The City will also monitor the effectiveness of each strategy with respect to how well each is removing pollutants, either qualitatively or quantitatively.

The City will provide DEQ with an annual review of the Plan and Matrix and provide a progress and effectiveness updates for each strategy. Through an adaptive management approach, the review will also highlight any updates or revisions to the Plan or Matrix that may be required. The City will also review, evaluate and revise the TMDL Implementation Plan in its entirety every five years. The review will include a summary of accomplishments and any hindrances that have or will affect implementation progress. Revisions, additions, or restructuring required to create a new, modified plan will be coordinated with DEQ. Both the annual and five year reviews will be presented to City Council for review.

#### **5.1** Public Involvement

A key aspect to monitoring progress of the implantation strategies is public input. The City Council will be presented with the final TMDL Implementation Plan and encouraged to adopt the strategies set forth and educate the residents of Molalla of its importance.

A Code enforcement reporting form has been made available on the City's website. Through this reporting, the City will utilize the public's input to address any code issues witnessed that may affect the goals of this Plan.

#### 5.2 Land Use Compliance

All strategies and activities listed in this Plan and Implementation Matrix are consistent with the City of Molalla land use plans. The Plan has been reviewed by City staff for consistency with local and state planning goals. All revisions to the TMDL implementation Plan will include a review for land use compatibility with the City staff. The City will also consider the Plan when developing or revising City ordinances that involve land use.

#### 5.3 Funding

Implementation of the TMDL strategies covered in this Plan is essential to the success of the overall Plan and the work to reduce pollutants from the City of Molalla. The City has identified a number of strategies to accomplish this reduction. Some of these strategies are small in nature and easy to implement and will be intergraded into workloads of existing staff and use general funds that are already allocated or will be allocated in coming years. Larger strategies will require further planning as budget becomes available and may also require the City to seek outside funding in the way of loans or grants. The City will review the strategies and funding status on an annual basis and look for possible funding sources for TMDL implementation.

The City has established a Surface Water Utility User Charge that is based on the amount of impervious area on a property. The fees collected from residential, commercial, and industrial sites will be allocated to the maintenance and improvement of the existing stormwater collection system.

#### **SECTION 6: TMDL IMPLEMENTATION MATRIX**

The following matrix details the strategies that will be implemented over the next five years. Some of these strategies will be implemented only as funding allows. The matrix shows the pollutant being addressed, the strategy to address it, the time table for implementation, and how progress and success will be monitored. This matrix will serve as the tracking tool for annual reporting to DEQ.



**Public Works Department** 315 Kennel Ave

PO Box 248 Molalla, Oregon 97038 Phone: (503) 829-6855

Fax: (503) 829-3676

June 25, 2022

Basin Coordinator Oregon DEQ 700 NE Multnomah St #600, Portland, OR 97232

Phone: 503-229-6254

RE: 2021/22 TMDL Report for City of Molalla

Dear Basin Coordinator,

Attached is the 2021/22 TMDL Temperature and Bacteria Report Matrix, along with the new Draft Mercury Matrix for the City of Molalla. The Draft Mercury items were approved by DEQ on 4/13/22, and the City is in the process of incorporating the new Mercury Chapter into the 2018 TMDL Implementation Plan. Final submission of that plan is scheduled for September 2022.

The City is proud of its efforts toward State TMDL goals this past year. The City swept 756 lane miles removing over 872,000 lbs of debris (4 tons per load, 109 loads); all development over the past year included storm facility design and construction to ensure a pre-developed hydrology from all sites; and the City has decommissioned all but 1 septic system within the City Limits, which is expected to be complete by end of year.

Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Sincerely,

Andy Peters, Public Works Division Manager

Cc: Mac Corthell, Community Development Director Dan Huff, City Manager



Public Works Department 315 Kennel Ave PO Box 248 Molalla, Oregon 97038

Phone: (503) 829-6855 Fax: (503) 829-3676



New signs at Sheets Field installed in 2022 attempt to address Total Coliform TMDL footprint.

	POLLUTANT: Temperature City of Molalla: TMDL Implementation Tracking Matrix							
SOURCE What sources of this pollutant are under your jurisdiction?	STRATEGY What is being done, or what will you do, to reduce and/or control pollution from this source?	HOW Specifically, how will this be done?	FISCAL ANALYSIS What is the expected resource need? Are there existing resources budgeted? If not, where will the resources come from?	MEASURE How will you quantitatively or qualitatively demonstrate successful implementation or completion of this strategy?	TIMELINE When do you expect it to be completed?	MILESTONE What intermediate goals do you expect to achieve, and by when, to know progress is being made?	ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT APPLIED Indicate how strategies have changed with annual review reports.	STATUS Include summary and date.
Lack of shading in riparian areas	Protect and enhance existing vegetation in riparian areas.	Enforce existing Municipal Code17-2.4.030 for new development: 50 ft. riparian and wetland setback and protection of native vegetation.	Code enforcement staffing; 0.20 FTE is currently funded.	Track enforcement actions and violations as well as development plan review.  Record square footage of riparian area protected with all development.	On-going	Retain all existing riparian vegetation on developments planned through 2021, as required by Municipal Code 17-2.4.030. Report areas protected in annual TMDL review report.	No changes made to code or application of code.	Protection of riparian areas adhered to with development of Colima Apartments (20-01); 643 N Molalla Ave (20-02); Bartell Subdivision (21-01).

Molalla TMDL Plan

Lack of shading in riparian areas	Protect and enhance existing vegetation in riparian areas.	Removal of creosote- treated railroad-tie bridge over Bear Creek on Molalla Forrest Road (19-07)	\$90,000	Railroad ties can leach creosote into soil and water systems. The removal is being done in accordance with approvals from DEQ, DSL, SHPO and US Army Corps of Engineers	1 year	Annual review of budget for possible implementation or private development. Report funding status in annual TMDL review report.	This project replaces the Bear Creek Greenway Project which was completed in 2018	Construction of the second phase (riparian zone spanning footbridge) scheduled for July 2020 was completed. The third phase has now been named "Chief Yelkus Park". IT is being funded in part by HB5006 money, and a wetland delineation has been ordered by the City.
Lack of shading in riparian areas	Protect and enhance existing vegetation in riparian areas.	Conduct public education on protection of riparian areas.	Staffing to conduct educational effort; 0.20 FTE currently funded.	Number of Pre- application Meetings, which include public education	On-going	Educational outreach once per year through 2021. Provide outreach details in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	Continued education of development community and property owners during preapplication meetings.

khading in	existing vegetation	by City Code 17-	Staffing as required for plan review and enforcement.	Track enforcement actions and violations as well as number of existing trees retained with each development.	On-going	Maintain all existing trees, where possible, on new development as required by Municipal Code 17-3.4.030.	No changes made to code or application of code.	Community Planner continued enforcement of development code on all projects.
Lack of shading in riparian areas	watershed groups and Clackamas	rinarian restoration	Volunteer staffing as required	Number of meetings attended, and projects collaborated on	5 Years	Attend at least one meeting annually 2020	The City has exceeded its goals in this area.	The City continues to provide a volunteer board member for Pudding River Watershed Council
Lack of shading in riparian areas	Tree planting	landscaping by way of	In City budget for Code enforcement staffing.	Number of trees planted and Area landscaped.	On-going	Establish list of projects that provided new trees and landscape areas through 2020 and include in annual TMDL review.	No changes made to code or application of code.	Project 20-07 "Creamery Creek Park" has been renamed "Strawberry Park" and is under construction. Final tree planting in the Riparian area will occur post- construction.

Molalla TMDL Plan

Stormwater	City Council overview and acknowledgement	Review TMDL Plan, annual reports and five year review with City Council.	None	Track number of times TMDL reports are covered in City Council meeting minutes.	On-going	City Council approval of TMDL Plan and review reports.	No change.	Council reviewed draft TMDL Report as part of regular meetings in June 2022. Council was also briefed on the new Mercury requirements during the budget committee meeting in May.
------------	-------------------------------------------------	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------	------	---------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------	-----------------------------------------------------------------	------------	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Reduced stream flow in Molalla River and tributaries	Reduce municipal water diversion.	Water conservation efforts	Staffing to complete scada programming and review compliance with AWWA Water Audit standards; 0.15 FTE currently funded.	Monitor total water use VS Total Production	On-going	Water use reported annually in TMDL report.	No change.	The City completed it's buildout of water auditing methodology, and performed a comprehensive leak assessment throughout town. Several capital Projects were launched due to the results of that study, including the Scandia Waterline Project (21-06) which is handling the largest leaking mainline in town.
Wastewater treatment plant discharge	Maintain low effluent temperatures	Maintain compliance with NPDES permit requirements.	Wastewater treatment staff; funded positions.	Molalla River temperature monitoring.	Continuous temperature measurement ; monthly permit reporting.	Report instream temperature monitoring with annual TMDL report review.	No change.	Effluent temperatures are available by reference to the City's monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs).

POLLUTANT: E	Bacteria, Mercury, and	Legacy Pesticides			City	of Molalla: TMDL Imple	ementation Tra	cking Matrix
SOURCE What sources of this pollutant are under your jurisdiction?	What is being done, or what will you do, to reduce and/or control pollution from this source?  Specifically, how will this be done?  What is being be done?  By done?  Specifically, how will this be done?  What is being be done?		FISCAL ANALYSIS What is the expected resource need? Are there existing resources budgeted?	MEASURE How will you quantitatively or qualitatively demonstrate successful implementation or completion of this strategy?	TIMELINE When do you expect it to be completed ?	to achieve, and by	ADAPTIVE MANAGEM ENT APPLIED Indicate how strategies have changed with annual reports.	STATUS Include summary and date.
Stormwater	Promote Low Impact Development and on-site stormwater treatment.	Encourage green street standards – at least half street improvements with new development.  Meet pre-development hydrology requirements per Municipal Code 17-3.6 and Public Works Design Standards Section 3.2.	Currently in Public Works budget.	Percent of green street standards for each project.  For each project, stormwater quantity calculations to meet predevelopment hydrology and water quality requirements per PW Standards.	On-going	All new development plans incorporate green street standards where practical and include predevelopment hydrology. Report applicable improvements in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	Protection of riparian areas adhered to with development of Colima Apartments (20-01); 643 N Molalla Ave (20-02); Bartell Subdivision (21-01).
Stormwater	Promote Low Impact Development and on-site stormwater treatment.	Incorporate stormwater treatment with transportation projects	Included in city budget according to capital improvement plan.	Project that include installed of stormwater treatment features	20 21	Hwy 211 sidewalk project	Listed most current projects.	This project was constructed in 2021.

Stormwater	Promote Low Impact Development and on-site stormwater treatment.	Public Works Design	Currently in City planning budget	nraidate that	On-going	Add drainage swales installed to GIS Stormwater map by end of 2021. Report number of water quality facilities constructed in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	Three new water quality swales incorporated into Colima Apartments (20-01); 643 N Molalla Ave (20-02); Bartell Subdivision (21-01).
Stormwater	Reduce pet waste in stormwater runoff.	Install waste bags in parks and common dogwalking locations. Citizen education about improper pet waste management.	-	Track waste bag usage within the City.	On-going	Report bag use in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	Supplied 22,745 bags in City Parks in 2021. This number is nearly 10 times higher than previous years as new stations were added.

Stormwater	Educate developers and the public about stormwater and hydrology in the City of Molalla.	Make Stormwater Master Plan and Public Works Design Standards available to public via City website.		Number of private development that meet stormwater standards.	On-going	All Private development projects meet stormwater detention and water quality requirements.	No change.	Protection of riparian areas adhered to with development Colima Apartments (20-01); 643 N Molalla Ave (20-02); Bartell Subdivision (21-01).
Stormwater	Prevent erosion from construction sites.	21.70 to ensure	Currently in Public Works budget.	Percent of sites that comply voluntarily.	Ongoing	Report permitted excavation projects that complied with Municipal Code 21.70 in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	Reviewed with development of Colima Apartments (20-
Stormwater	Prevent erosion from construction sites.	1200C permits as	Public Works	Keep track of 1200C permits within City boundaries.	On-going	Report projects that complied with 1200C permits in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	01); 643 N Molalla Ave (20-02); Bartell Subdivision (21- 01).
Stormwater	Reduce runoff and sediment load from impervious areas: roads, vacant lots.	Maintain weekly street sweeping schedule.	Currently in Public Works budget.	Using street sweeping log, track frequency of areas cleaned.	On-going	Report volume estimate of street sweepings in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	Approximately 969 CY (872,000 lbs) between 6/1/21-6/1/22. This is more than 7 times higher than the 114,232 lbs hauled last year.

Stormwater	Maintenance Program for stormwater collection system.	Maintain storm syster components including catch basins, manhole and pipes.	Development	Track maintenance projects that improve stormwater system.  Construct Decant Facility as funding		Indicate number and type of maintenance projects in annual TMDL review report.  Provide funding status for Decant facility in annual	No change.	Decant Facility Design has been completed, funding becomes available July 2022 as planned.
Combined storm and sanitary sewer and Inflow/Infiltrat on	etticiency of	Eliminate illicit discharge and infiltration issues in downtown core.	To be determined.	Average daily flow to treatment plant before and after cross connect issues addressed.	5 years	Report completion of planned inflow/infiltration projects in annual TMDL review report. Include annual review of budget for inflow/infiltration projects.	No change.	Completion of sewer project on Patrol St. Completion of repairs to the Molalla Lift Station Feeder Line (a High Priority Project in the Wastewater Collection System Master Plan). Total influent at the WWTP measurably reduced, estimated 26% reduction since 2018 at the time of this report.

Combined storm and sanitary sewers, and Inflow/Infiltrat ion	Decommission Septic Systems per Municipal Code 13.08.300 – Upon Availability of Public Sewer – Abandonment of Private Systems.	Administer 30 day notice to connect to city sewer where public sewer is made available.	Planning staff, full time.	Number of new connections made annually as a result of annexations, violations discovered.	On-going	Connect all residential, commercial, industrial properties within city limits to city sewer and report in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	As of today 10 of the previously identified 11 properties have abandoned their septic systems and hooked up to sewer system.
Illegal Discharge and Industrial Pretreatment Program	Code enforcement of Municipal Code 13.08.840 – Discharge Into Storm Drains.  Establishment Pretreatment code: 13.13.530	Provide code enforcement form to citizens.  Update Industrial Pretreatment Survey.	Currently in City budget for Operations Supervisor.	Track number of complaints and issues.	On-going	Code enforcement form has been made available on the City of Molalla website. Report number of complaints received, and corrective actions taken in annual TMDL review report.	No change.	The City received zero illegal discharge complaints in 2021.
Mercury Measure #1	Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping for Municipal Operations	Build Decant Facility for Stormwater debris	\$80,000 for construction. Maintenance and disposal costs to be determined next round.	Completed project	09/31/23	Design acceptance package by January 2023	TBD	TBD

Mercury Measure #2	Public Education and Outreach	Coordinate with Library District for ideas. Provide public information on 4 <sup>th</sup> of July Parade Float, and display at annual "National Night Out".	\$1000 /year	Photographs	09/31/23	Mockups should be available by 06/15/23	TBD	TBD
Mercury Measure #3	Public Involvement and Participation	Establish "Molalla Current" as a public outreach and participation platform.	Est \$8000 /year (\$300 from storm fund)	Number of Citizens signed up.	09/31/23	Milestone: 800 citizens signed up by January 2023.	TBD	TBD
Mercury Measure #4	Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination	IDDE program through Code Enforcement via Manual Count. Coordinate annual Spring Cleanup Event. Provide Pharmaceutical disposal facility at Police Dept.	Est \$7500 /year	Number of Code Enforcement Cases.	09/31/23	Milestone: next annual spring cleanup day event moves forward in March/April 2023.	TBD	TBD

Mercury Measure #5	Construction Site Runoff Control	Document Site Runoff Program Implementation as a STORMWATER file in each project folder.	\$0	Number of Projects that required Site Runoff Program implementation	09/31/23	Milestone: all staff briefed on this requirement by 1/31/23	TBD	TBD
Mercury Measure #6	Post- Construction Site Runoff for New Development and Redevelopment	Update PW Standards to require capture and treatment of 80% of the average annual runoff volume, to the maximum extent possible, with the goal of 70% total suspended solids (TSS) removal.	\$1500 one time	Upon completion and publication of document revision	December 2023	Draft completed by Sept 2023	TBD	TBD



### **CITY OF MOLALLA**

117 N. Molalla Avenue PO Box 248 Molalla, OR 97038

### **Staff Report**

**Agenda Category: General Discussion** 

Agenda Date: August 24, 2022 From: Dan Huff, City Manager
Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager

**SUBJECT:** GFOA Distinguished Budget Award

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

**RECOMMENDATION/RECOMMEND MOTION:** N/A

### **BACKGROUND:**

The Distinguished Budget Award is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association for each fiscal year. This current award is our 3<sup>rd</sup> consecutive year being presented with this award.

Huge thanks go to the Finance Department, and especially to Cindy Chauran, Senior Accountant, and Chaunee Seifried, Finance Director.

August 16, 2022

Cindy Chauran City of Molalla 117 N. Molalla Avenue Molalla, OR 97038

Dear Ms. Chauran:

We are pleased to inform you, based on the examination of your budget by a panel of independent reviewers, that your budget document has been awarded the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for the current fiscal period. This award is the highest form of recognition in governmental budgeting. Its attainment represents a significant achievement by your organization.

The Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is valid for one year. To continue your participation in the program, it will be necessary to submit your next annual budget document to GFOA within 90 days of the proposed budget's submission to the legislature or within 90 days of the budget's final adoption. Information about how to submit an application for the Distinguished Budget Program application is posted on GFOA's website.

Each program participant is provided with confidential comments and suggestions for possible improvements to the budget document. Your comments are enclosed. We urge you to carefully consider the suggestions offered by our reviewers as you prepare your next budget.

When a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is granted to an entity, a Certificate of Recognition for Budget Presentation is also presented to the individual(s) or department designated as being primarily responsible for its having achieved the award. Enclosed is a Certificate of Recognition for Budget Preparation for:

### **Finance Department**

Continuing participants will receive a brass medallion that will be mailed separately. First-time recipients will receive an award plaque within eight to ten weeks. Enclosed is a camera-ready reproduction of the award for inclusion in your next budget. If you reproduce the camera-ready image in your next budget, it should be accompanied by a statement indicating continued compliance with program criteria. The following standardized text should be used:

Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to **City of Molalla, Oregon**, for its Annual Budget for the fiscal year beginning **July 01, 2021**. In order to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as a financial plan, as an operations guide, and as a communications device.

This award is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current budget continues to conform to program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another award.

A press release is enclosed.

Upon request, GFOA can provide a video from its Executive Director congratulating your specific entity for winning the Budget Award.

We appreciate your participation in this program, and we sincerely hope that your example will encourage others in their efforts to achieve and maintain excellence in governmental budgeting. The most current list of award recipients can be found on GFOA's website at www.gfoa.org. If we can be of further assistance, please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-9700.

Sincerely,

Michele Mark Levine

Director, Technical Services Center

Melele Mark Line

Enclosure

#### FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

August 16, 2022

For more information, contact:

Technical Services Center Phone: (312) 977-9700 Fax: (312) 977-4806

E-mail: budgetawards@gfoa.org

(Chicago, Illinois)--Government Finance Officers Association is pleased to announce that **City of Molalla**, **Oregon**, has received GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its budget.

The award represents a significant achievement by the entity. It reflects the commitment of the governing body and staff to meeting the highest principles of governmental budgeting. In order to receive the budget award, the entity had to satisfy nationally recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. These guidelines are designed to assess how well an entity's budget serves as:

- a policy document
- a financial plan
- an operations guide
- a communications device

Budget documents must be rated "proficient" in all four categories, and in the fourteen mandatory criteria within those categories, to receive the award.

When a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award is granted to an entity, a Certificate of Recognition for Budget Presentation is also presented to the individual(s) or department designated as being primarily responsible for having achieved the award. This has been presented to **Finance Department**.

There are over 1,700 participants in the Budget Awards Program. The most recent Budget Award recipients, along with their corresponding budget documents, are posted quarterly on GFOA's website. Award recipients have pioneered efforts to improve the quality of budgeting and provide an excellent example for other governments throughout North America.

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) advances excellence in government finance by providing best practices, professional development, resources and practical research for more than 22,500 members and the communities they serve.



### **GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION**

# Distinguished Budget Presentation Award

PRESENTED TO

City of Molalla Oregon

For the Fiscal Year Beginning

July 01, 2021

**Executive Director** 

Christopher P. Morrill



### The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada

presents this

### CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION FOR BUDGET PREPARATION

to

### Finance Department City of Molalla, Oregon



The Certificate of Recognition for Budget Preparation is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association to those individuals who have been instrumental in their government unit achieving a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award. The Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, which is the highest award in governmental budgeting, is presented to those government units whose budgets are judged to adhere to program standards

**Executive Director** 

Christopher P. Morrill

Date: **August 16, 2022** 

## BUDGET REVIEW COMPOSITE RATING FORM GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Awards Program For budgets beginning January 1, 2021 or later

Agency: City of Molalla OR

Fiscal Year beginning: 7/1/21

Document number: B9946722

At least 2 of the three reviewers must rate the document "proficient" or "outstanding on all four overall categories and all mandatory criteria in order for the document to receive the award

		eceive t												
Informa	tion Not	Present	Doe	s Not Sat	tisfv		Proficien <sup>o</sup>	t	0	utstandi	ng			
	(1)			(2)	•		(3)			(4)	J			
R1	R2	R3	R1	R2	R3	R1	R2	R3	R1	R2	R3			
														Introduction and Overview
					$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					*	C1	Table of contents (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		<b>V</b>		*	Ρ1	Strategic goals & strategies (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	P2	Priorities and issues (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		<b>✓</b>		*	C2	Budget overview (mandatory)
											_			Financial Structure, Policy, and Process
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	01	Organizational chart (mandatory)
								$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	<b>✓</b>			F1	Fund descriptions and fund structure
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					02	Department/fund relationship
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					F2	Basis of budgeting
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	Р3	Financial policies (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		<b>\</b>		*	P4	Budget process (mandatory)
	_													Financial Summaries
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	F3	Consolidated financial schedule (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					F4	Three (four) year consolidated & fund financial schedules
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	F5	Fund balance (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	F6	Revenues (mandatory)
			$\checkmark$	<b>\</b>				$\checkmark$					F7	Long-range operating financial plans
											·			Capital & Debt
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	F8	Capital program (mandatory)
						<b>V</b>	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	F9	Debt (mandatory)
														<u>Departmental Information</u>
						$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		*		•
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				*	04	Departmental/program descriptions (mandatory)
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					05	Departmental/program goals and objectives
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$			]	*	06	Performance measures (mandatory)
				,						·	·			<u>Document-wide Criteria</u>
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					C3	Statistical/supplemental section
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					C4	Glossary
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$					C5	Charts and graphs
				<b>✓</b>		<b>V</b>		<b>~</b>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		C6	Understandability and usability
											,			<u>Overall</u>
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$						Overall as a policy document
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$						Overall as a financial plan
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$						Overall as a operations guide
						$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$						Overall as a communications device

- N Special Capital recognition (three "outstanding ratings on F8
- N Special Performance Measure recognition (three "outstanding" ratings on O6)

Name of Entity: City of Molalla State/Province: OR

Reviewer IDR 203Document NumberB9946722Fiscal Year:Record Number134423001

### **Introduction and Overview**

C1. Mandatory: Include a table of contents that makes it simple to locate information. 3 – proficient – The budget document includes a good table of contents. Consider including links to relevant parts of the budget.

- P1. **Mandatory:** Provide a coherent statement of organization-wide, strategic goals and strategies that address long-term concerns and issues. **3 proficient The budget includes organization wide policy goals for the city.**
- P2. Mandatory: Provide a budget message that articulates priorities and issues for the upcoming year. 3 proficient The budget describes the challenges, and goals of the city for the budget period and beyond.
- C2. **Mandatory:** The document should provide an overview of significant budgetary items and trends. 3 proficient The budget includes good summary information that compliments the message and leads into the rest of the document.

### Financial Structure, Policy, and Process

- O1. *Mandatory:* The document shall include an organization chart for the entire entity. 3 **proficient The** document includes an entity wide organization chart.
- F1. The document should include and describe all funds that are subject to appropriation. 4 outstanding The document describes and illustrates the funds and fund structure clearly.
- O2. The document should provide narrative, tables, schedules, or matrices to show the relationship between functional units, major funds, and non-major funds in the aggregate. 3 proficient The document includes information that makes the relationship between the financial structure and the organizational structure clear.
- F2. The document shall explain the basis of budgeting for all funds, whether cash, modified accrual, or some other statutory basis. 3 proficient The budget describes the basis of budgeting and contrast it to the accounting / reporting basis.
- P3. *Mandatory:* The document should include a coherent statement of entity-wide long-term financial policies. 3 proficient the budget includes descriptions of the financial policies.
- P4. Mandatory: The document shall describe the process for preparing, reviewing, and adopting the budget for the coming fiscal year. It also should describe the procedures for amending the budget after adoption.
   3 proficient the budget describes the process and includes charts and a schedule to visually illustrate the budget process.

### **Financial Summaries**

F3. **Mandatory:** The document shall present a summary of major revenues and expenditures, as well as other financing sources and uses, to provide an overview of the total resources budgeted by the organization. 3 – proficient – the budget provides a good financial summary of revenues and expenditures by major revenues and major expenditures for the city as a whole. The financial plan for the city is clear.

- F4. The document must include summaries of revenues and other financing sources, and of expenditures and other financing uses for the prior year actual, the current year budget and / or estimated current year actual, and the proposed budget year. 3 proficient the budget includes good financial histories in the context of the financial schedules.
- F5. **Mandatory:** The document shall include projected changes in fund balances for appropriated governmental funds included in the budget presentation. 3 **proficient the budget includes** illustrations of the fund balances including a brief analysis of the uses and expectations for fund balances.
- F6. *Mandatory:* The document shall describe major revenue, explain the underlying assumptions for the revenue estimates, and discuss significant revenue trends. 3 proficient the budget includes descriptions, discussions and analysis of the major revenues. Look to enhance the discussions and analysis of major revenues in future budgets.
- F7. The document should explain long-range plans and its affect upon the budget and the budget process. 2

   does not satisfy The budget includes a brief discussion about long-range financial plans for

  operating budget. Consider including forecasts, trends or other data reflective of the city

  operating budgets for at least three years beyond the budget period.

### Capital & Debt

- F8. **Mandatory:** The document should include budgeted capital expenditures, whether authorized in the operating budget or in a separate capital budget. 3 **proficient** A discussion about the capital needs and plans for the city is included, including descriptions of planned, major capital projects.
- F9. **Mandatory:** The document shall include financial data on current debt obligations, describe the relationship between current debt levels and legal debt limits, and explain the effects of existing debt levels on current operations. 3 **proficient The budget describes the debt management plan for the city.**

### **Departmental Information**

- O3. **Mandatory:** A schedule or summary table of personnel or position counts for prior, current and budgeted years shall be provided. 3 proficient A personnel summary for the <u>organization as a whole</u> covering at least three years of comparison is included in the document along with descriptions of the personnel issues and changes contemplated.
- O4. *Mandatory:* Include departmental/program descriptions. 3 proficient the budget includes descriptions for each of the major operating units in the budget.
- O5. The document should include clearly stated goals and objectives of organizational units (e.g., states, divisions, units or programs). 3 proficient The organizational unit goals are included in the budget.
- O6. **Mandatory**: Provide objective measures of progress toward accomplishing the government's mission as well as goals and objectives for specific departments and programs. **3 proficient The budget includes performance information and metrics.**

### Document-wide Criteria

- C3. The document should include statistical and supplemental data that describe the organization, its community, and population. 3 proficient good statistical and supplemental information about the community is included in the document.
- C4. A glossary should be included for any terminology (including abbreviations and acrony.ms) that is not readily understandable to a reasonably informed lay reader. 3 proficient a glossary of terms unique to budgeting and to the city's budget is included.
- C5. Charts and graphs should be used, where appropriate, to highlight financial and statistical information. Narrative interpretation should be provided when the messages conveyed by the graphs are not self-evident. 3 proficient The document includes good charts and graphs to help provide greater understanding of the budget trends and allocations.
- C6. The document should be produced and formatted in such a way as to enhance its understanding by the average reader. It should be attractive, consistent, and oriented to the reader's needs. 3 proficient The budget document looks good and is easy to follow.

I would suggest being more specific in your reviewer's guide references about which pages in the document illustrate compliance with the criteria. Answering "yes" prevents me from seeing where you believe you've complied with the program.

Nice job!

### GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION DISTINGUISHED BUDGET PRESENTATION AWARDS PROGRAM BUDGET REVIEWER'S COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS

For: CITY OF MOLALLA, OR Fiscal Year: 2021-22

### Introduction and Overview:

The City of Molalla presented a table of contents (link it to the pages & vice versa), their goals, guiding principles, mission, vision, values, focus areas with strategies and actions plans linked to functions, issues and challenges that guided them in the budget development process and provide the framework for future years. The budget message presented a multi-year budget-in-brief.

### Financial Structure, Policy and Process:

All criteria were rated at least proficient. Add citizens, community, people, public or residents to the overall organization chart. A funds chart enhanced fund descriptions. The budget process was enhanced with a detailed calendar.

### Financial Summaries:

Mandatory criteria were rated proficient. To further enhance F7 (and F3 & F4), see page 170 (and 127-129) of the GFOA publication, <u>Building A Better Budget Document</u>, 2nd edition, by John Fishbein.

### Capital and Debt:

Each criterion was rated proficient. Capital was presented. Debt information was provided.

### **Departmental Information:**

All criteria were rated at least proficient. Departments presented description, highlights, multi-year measures, multi-year FTES which enhance O3, and multi-year financial data.

### Document-Wide Criteria

Most criteria were rated proficient. Some economic and demographic information was presented – what are your major employers and taxpayers? Add full-time equivalent, governmental fund, modified accrual, and proprietary fund to the glossary and list of acronyms. Proof, proof, and proof again – pages 15, 22, 27, 94, etc need attention with grammar and partial sentences, etc. Use at least size 10 font throughout the document – this is size 11 (and this is size 10 which is actually too small!)

### Comments/Suggestions:

The GFOA publication, <u>Building A Better Budget Document</u>, 2nd edition, by John Fishbein (mentioned above) and the GFOA website under Best Practices are valuable resources available to assist you in further enhancing your budget document. Staff is to be commended for their efforts.

Control: B9946722 Record #134423001 Reviewer: S411 JUL 2022

Name of Entity: City of Molalla

State/Province: OR Reviewer ID V691 Document Number B9946722 Fiscal Year: FY 2023 Record Number 134423001

### Introduction and Overview

- C1. Mandatory: Include a table of contents that makes it simple to locate information. Does not meet requirements. However, the bookmarks were somewhat helpful. The location guide should include the page numbers.
- P1. Mandatory: Provide a coherent statement of organization-wide, strategic goals and strategies that address long-term concerns and issues. Proficient, City should include quantitative measures within the long-term plan.
- P2. Mandatory: Provide a budget message that articulates priorities and issues for the upcoming year. The message should describe significant changes in priorities from the current year and explain the factors that led to those changes. The message may take one of several forms (e.g., transmittal letter, budget summary section). Proficient.
- C2. Mandatory: An overview of significant budgetary items and trends should be provided. The overview should be presented within the budget as a separate section (e.g., budget-in brief) or integrated within the transmittal letter. **Proficient**,

### Financial Structure, Policy, and Process

- O1. Mandatory: Provide an organization chart(s) for the entire entity. Proficient
- F1. Describe all funds that are subject to appropriation. Proficient.
- O2. Provide narrative, tables, schedules, or matrices to show the relationship between functional units, major funds, and nonmajor funds in the aggregate. Proficient.
- F2. Explain the basis of budgeting for all funds, whether cash, modified accrual, or some other statutory basis. **Proficient.**
- P3. Mandatory: Include a coherent statement of entity-wide long-term financial policies. Proficient, please refer to the Long-Term Financial Planning (gfoa.org)
- P4. Mandatory: Describe the process for preparing, reviewing, and adopting the budget for the coming fiscal year. It also should describe the procedures for amending the budget after adoption. Proficient, the narrative provides the required information, however, to ensure that citizens understand the budget can be amended, the paragraph should be clearly noted, and what it the process.

### **Financial Summaries**

- F3. **Mandatory:** Present a summary of major revenues and expenditures, as well as other financing sources and uses, to provide an overview of the total resources budgeted by the organization. Proficient, City should add charts to provide a visual picture of the information.
- F4. Include summaries of revenues and other financing sources, and of expenditures and other financing uses for the prior year actual, the current year budget and/or estimated current year actual, and the proposed budget year. **Proficient**
- F5. Mandatory: Include projected changes in fund balance/net position for appropriated funds included in the budget presentation. Proficient. provided the requirement.
- F6. Mandatory: Describe major revenue sources, explain the underlying assumptions for the revenue estimates, and discuss significant revenue trends. Proficient, use of charts and graphs would be helpful to the readers.
- F7. Explain long-range operating financial plans and its effect upon the budget and the budget process. Proficient, please refer to Long-Term Financial Planning (gfoa.org) for additional guidance.

1

57

### Capital & Debt

- F8. *Mandatory:* Include budgeted capital expenditures, whether authorized in the operating budget or in a separate capital budget. Proficient, City should consider including pictures of the projects in the CIP section of the document.
- F9. *Mandatory:* Include financial data on current debt obligations, describe the relationship between current debt levels and legal debt limits, and explain the effects of existing debt levels on current operations. **Proficient, a suggest that all of the related information in one section would make it easy for the citizens.**

### **Departmental/Program Information**

- O3. *Mandatory:* A schedule or summary table of personnel or position counts for prior, current and budgeted years shall be provided. **Proficient, provided the requirements.**
- O4. *Mandatory:* Include departmental/program descriptions. **Proficient, it appears that each department and the goals and measurements are included.**
- O5. Include clearly stated goals and objectives of the department or program. Proficient, it appears that each department and the goals and measurements are included.
- O6. **Mandatory:** Provide objective measures of progress toward accomplishing the government's mission as well as goals and objectives for specific departments and programs. **Proficient,** the goals and objectives are stated in the overall summary, which includes the measurement and status.

### **Document-wide Criteria**

- C3. Include statistical and supplemental data that describe the organization, its community, and population. It should also furnish other pertinent background information related to the services provided. **Proficient**
- C4. A glossary should be included for any terminology (including abbreviations and acronyms) that is not readily understandable to a reasonably informed lay reader. **Proficient.**
- C5. Charts and graphs should be used, where appropriate, to highlight financial and statistical information. Narrative interpretation should be provided when the messages conveyed by the graphs are not self-evident. **Proficient, use of narrative and tables are provided in the document, additional charts should be considered for major sections of the budget.**
- C6. The budget information should be produced and formatted in such a way as to enhance its understanding by the average reader. It should be attractive, consistent, and oriented to the reader's needs. **Proficient.**